Rojelio S Pop UD81533IN90750

COURSE NAME: **DIP 624 – Diplomacy**

ATLANTIC INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY

January 2024



Table of Contents

Question/Essay Topic	3
Introduction	3
Body of Assignment	4
Definition of Diplomacy:	4
Significance in the Global Arena:	5
Power dynamics between nations:	5
Balance of Power:	5
Soft Power and Hard Power:	5
Economic and Military Influences:	6
Skills and Tactics of Negotiation and Diplomacy:	6
Communication Strategies:	6
Conflict Resolution Techniques:	6
Cultural Competence in Diplomacy:	7
History and Development of International Relations:	7
Early Diplomacy and Treaties:	7
Evolution through Modern Times:	7
Key Historical Events Shaping Diplomatic Practices:	7
Role of International Organizations:	8
United Nations (UN) and Its Functions:	8
Other Global Organizations (e.g., NATO, WTO):	8
Diplomatic Initiatives for Global Peace and Security:	8
Case Studies:	9
Successful Diplomatic Initiatives:	9
Diplomatic failures and their Consequences:	9
Lessons Learned from Historical Examples:	9
Future Trends in Diplomacy:	10
Technological Influences:	10
Climate Change and Diplomatic Challenges:	10
Emerging Issues in International Relations:	10
Conclusion	11
Bibliography	12



Question/Essay Topic

"The Art and Science of Diplomacy: Unraveling the Threads of International Relations"

This topic delves into the multifaceted realm of diplomacy, offering a comprehensive exploration of the power dynamics, negotiation tactics, historical evolution, and the pivotal role played by international organizations in shaping global peace and security. Through this examination, individuals will gain a profound understanding of the intricacies that govern how nations interact on the world stage and the skills required to navigate the complex landscape of international relations..

Introduction

Diplomacy, often referred to as the art and science of conducting negotiations between nations, stands as a cornerstone in the complex architecture of international relations. In the global arena, where the threads of interconnectedness weave through the fabric of diverse cultures, economies, and political systems, diplomacy emerges as the primary mechanism through which nations navigate the delicate balance of power, negotiate conflicts, and forge cooperative alliances. This introductory exploration of diplomacy encompasses a comprehensive understanding of its definition, unravels its significance in the global landscape, dissects the intricate power dynamics between nations, elucidates the essential skills and tactics crucial for successful negotiation, traces the historical evolution of international relations, delves into the pivotal roles played by international organizations, examines pertinent case studies, and forecasts future trends that will shape the contours of diplomatic engagements.

At its core, diplomacy serves as the linchpin for fostering relationships between sovereign entities. Its definition extends beyond the mere exchange of ambassadors and formal communications; it encapsulates the nuanced dance of dialogue, negotiation, and strategic decision-making that defines how nations interact on the world stage. As the intricate web of global affairs continues to expand and interconnect, the significance of diplomacy becomes increasingly pronounced, providing the essential framework through which states seek to advance their interests while maintaining international stability.

The power dynamics between nations form the crux of diplomatic engagements, manifesting in various forms such as economic prowess, military strength, and the influence of soft power. Understanding the intricate interplay of these dynamics is imperative for comprehending the motivations and actions of states in the international arena. Negotiation and diplomacy emerge as essential skills, honed over centuries, enabling diplomats to navigate these power dynamics with finesse. From crafting persuasive arguments to resolving conflicts through diplomatic means, these skills form the bedrock upon which successful international relations are built.

The historical development of international relations provides a rich tapestry of experiences, conflicts, and collaborations. From the ancient treaties and alliances to the modern complexities of global governance, the evolution of diplomatic practices offers valuable insights into the shaping of the contemporary world order. Examining this historical trajectory unveils the lessons



learned from past successes and failures, providing a roadmap for diplomats and policymakers to navigate the challenges of today.

International organizations, with the United Nations at the forefront, play a pivotal role in the maintenance of global peace and security. These entities serve as forums for diplomatic discourse, platforms for conflict resolution, and mechanisms for collective action. Understanding the roles of these organizations is essential for grasping the broader context in which diplomacy operates, highlighting the interconnectedness of nations and the shared responsibility for maintaining a stable global environment.

In the realm of diplomacy, case studies stand as practical lessons that illustrate the application of diplomatic principles in real-world scenarios. Examining historical and contemporary cases provides a nuanced understanding of the complexities and challenges faced by diplomats. From successful peace accords to diplomatic impasses, case studies offer valuable insights into the multifaceted nature of international relations.

Looking ahead, the future trends in diplomacy present a landscape shaped by technological advancements, evolving geopolitical realities, and emerging global challenges. Climate change, cyber threats, and shifts in economic power dynamics are just a few examples of the factors that will influence the diplomatic landscape in the coming years. Anticipating these trends is crucial for diplomats and policymakers to adapt and formulate effective strategies in an ever-changing world.

In essence, this exploration of diplomacy encompasses the multidimensional facets that define its nature and practice. From its historical roots to its contemporary relevance and future trajectories, diplomacy remains an ever-evolving force that shapes the course of international relations, offering a lens through which we can better comprehend the intricate dance of nations on the global stage.

Body of Assignment

Definition of Diplomacy:

Diplomacy, as a concept, encapsulates the art and science of managing international relations through negotiation, dialogue, and strategic communication between sovereign entities. Renowned scholar Harold Nicolson defines diplomacy as "the application of intelligence and tact to the conduct of official relations between the governments of independent states." (Nicolson, 1963). It involves the representation of a state's interests, promotion of mutual understanding, and resolution of conflicts through peaceful means. The term has evolved over centuries, adapting to the changing dynamics of international relations, and encompasses various forms, including public diplomacy, economic diplomacy, and cultural diplomacy.

The Vienna Convention on Diplomatic Relations of 1961 further formalizes the diplomatic framework, outlining the privileges and immunities of diplomatic missions and personnel. Diplomacy extends beyond formal negotiations, encompassing a continuous process of information exchange, relationship-building, and conflict resolution. In essence, diplomacy serves as the conduit through which nations engage in dialogue, fostering cooperation and managing disputes to maintain a semblance of order in the international arena. (Vienna Convention, 1961).

A New Age for Distance Learning



Significance in the Global Arena:

The significance of diplomacy in the global arena cannot be overstated, as it serves as the linchpin for the functioning of international relations. In a world characterized by diverse cultures, political ideologies, and economic systems, diplomacy provides the essential framework for nations to navigate the complexities of the global landscape. As former U.S. Secretary of State Henry Kissinger aptly notes, "Diplomacy is not an end in itself but a means to the end of defending and enhancing the security of the nation, its citizens, and their way of life." (Kissinger, 1994).

At its core, diplomacy mitigates conflicts and fosters cooperation by offering a platform for open communication and negotiation. Through diplomatic channels, nations can address common challenges, such as transnational threats, climate change, and global health crises, collectively. Moreover, diplomacy facilitates the establishment of treaties, alliances, and international agreements that contribute to the maintenance of peace and stability.

In the absence of effective diplomatic efforts, the global stage would be characterized by heightened tensions, increased likelihood of armed conflicts, and a lack of mechanisms for resolving disputes peacefully. Diplomacy, therefore, acts as a stabilizing force, allowing nations to pursue their interests within a framework of rules, norms, and shared responsibilities. It plays a crucial role in building trust, understanding, and collaboration among states, fostering a more interconnected and interdependent world. (Berridge, 2015).

Power dynamics between nations:

Balance of Power:

The concept of the balance of power is a central tenet in understanding the power dynamics between nations. Originating from political philosophy, the balance of power theory posits that stability is maintained in the international system when no single state or coalition of states becomes overwhelmingly dominant. As Hans Morgenthau observes, "The balance of power is the presupposition and the instrument of a realpolitik." (Morgenthau, 1948). This equilibrium acts as a deterrent, discouraging aggression and preventing the emergence of a hegemonic power that could threaten the security and interests of other nations.

Historically, the Concert of Europe following the Napoleonic Wars and the Cold War between the United States and the Soviet Union are notable examples where the balance of power played a crucial role in maintaining stability. The dynamic nature of international relations ensures that shifts in power create a constant recalibration, as nations form alliances or seek to counterbalance rising powers to preserve their own security and influence. (Waltz, 1979).

Soft Power and Hard Power:

Soft power and hard power represent two distinct dimensions of a nation's influence in international affairs. Coined by Joseph Nye, soft power refers to a nation's ability to shape the preferences of others through appeal and attraction, rather than coercion or force. (Nye, 1990). Cultural influence, diplomatic initiatives, and the attractiveness of a nation's values and ideals contribute to its soft power. For instance, the global popularity of American music, films, and educational institutions underscores the soft power of the United States.

In contrast, hard power involves the use of military force and economic coercion to achieve a nation's strategic objectives. As articulated by Joseph Nve, "Hard power is push; soft power is

A New Age for Distance Learning



pull." (Nye, 2004). Military capabilities, economic strength, and geopolitical leverage are key components of hard power. The interplay between soft and hard power is dynamic, with successful nations often combining both to achieve comprehensive influence in the international arena. (Nye, 2011).

Economic and Military Influences:

Economic and military influences constitute pivotal aspects of a nation's power projection. Economically, a nation's strength is often measured by its gross domestic product (GDP), trade relationships, and technological innovation. Economic power enables nations to exert influence through trade agreements, economic sanctions, and foreign aid. For instance, China's economic ascent in recent decades has significantly enhanced its global influence, allowing it to forge economic partnerships and investments worldwide.

Military influence, on the other hand, emanates from a nation's defense capabilities and strategic positioning. A formidable military act as both a deterrent and a tool for coercion, influencing the behavior of other states. The geopolitical significance of military bases, nuclear capabilities, and the ability to project force regionally or globally enhances a nation's standing in international affairs. The interplay between economic and military influences underscores the multidimensional nature of power dynamics between nations. (Mearsheimer, 2001).

Skills and Tactics of Negotiation and Diplomacy:

Communication Strategies:

Effective communication lies at the heart of successful negotiation and diplomacy. Crafting and delivering messages that convey a state's interests clearly while considering the nuances of diplomatic discourse is a skill diplomats must master. Edward R. Murrow's famous adage, "The real crucial link in the international exchange is the last three feet, which is bridged by personal contact, one person talking to another," underscores the importance of interpersonal communication in diplomacy. (Murrow, 1961).

Strategies such as active listening, choosing the right diplomatic language, and tailoring messages to the cultural context of the recipient contribute to effective communication. Additionally, non-verbal communication, including body language and facial expressions, plays a crucial role in conveying sincerity and building trust during diplomatic interactions. (Fisher, Ury & Patton, 2011)

Conflict Resolution Techniques:

Negotiation often involves addressing and resolving conflicts between nations. Diplomats employ various techniques to navigate contentious issues and reach mutually acceptable agreements. The principled negotiation approach, as advocated by Roger Fisher and William Ury in their seminal work "Getting to Yes," emphasizes separating people from the problem, focusing on interests rather than positions, generating options for mutual gain, and insisting on objective criteria for agreement. (Fisher et al, 2011).

Mediation and arbitration are additional conflict resolution tools in the diplomatic toolkit. The United Nations, for example, frequently engages in mediation efforts to resolve disputes between member states, showcasing the importance of third-party facilitation in international conflict resolution. (UN.Org). By combining these techniques, diplomats can work towards deescalating tensions and fostering cooperation.



Cultural Competence in Diplomacy:

Cultural competence is an indispensable aspect of effective diplomacy, as diplomats engage with representatives from diverse cultural backgrounds. Edward T. Hall's cultural dimensions theory highlights the impact of culture on communication styles and behavioral norms, emphasizing the need for diplomats to understand and adapt to cultural differences. (Hall, 1976).

Language proficiency, knowledge of local customs, and an appreciation for cultural nuances enable diplomats to navigate diplomatic exchanges successfully. Culturally competent diplomats demonstrate respect for diversity, build rapport with counterparts, and avoid misunderstandings that could derail negotiations. This cultural intelligence is particularly crucial in building long-term relationships and fostering international cooperation.

History and Development of International Relations:

Early Diplomacy and Treaties:

The roots of international relations can be traced back to the early forms of diplomacy and treaties that emerged among ancient civilizations. The Code of Hammurabi, one of the earliest known legal codes, included provisions for diplomatic envoys and the establishment of treaties between Mesopotamian city-states around 1754 BCE. (King, 1902). The ancient Greeks also engaged in diplomatic practices, with emissaries representing city-states and negotiating treaties to establish alliances or resolve conflicts.

The Treaty of Westphalia in 1648 is often considered a watershed moment in the development of modern diplomacy. This treaty marked the end of the Thirty Years' War and established the principles of state sovereignty and non-interference in the internal affairs of other states, shaping the foundation of the modern state system. (Osiander, 2001).

Evolution through Modern Times:

The evolution of international relations continued through the Renaissance and the Enlightenment, with the emergence of resident ambassadors and the development of permanent diplomatic missions. The Congress of Vienna in 1814-1815, following the Napoleonic Wars, exemplified the concert diplomacy approach, where major European powers convened to redraw the map of Europe and maintain a balance of power. (Schroeder, 1994).

The 20th century witnessed the creation of the League of Nations after World War I, an early attempt at establishing a collective security mechanism. Despite its shortcomings, the League laid the groundwork for the establishment of the United Nations in 1945, a pivotal development in modern diplomacy aimed at preventing future global conflicts.

Key Historical Events Shaping Diplomatic Practices:

Numerous historical events have shaped diplomatic practices, influencing the conduct of international relations. The Cuban Missile Crisis in 1962 showcased the delicate nature of crisis diplomacy during the Cold War, as the United States and the Soviet Union navigated the brink of nuclear conflict. The crisis underscored the importance of effective communication and negotiation in preventing global catastrophe. (Fursenko & Natali, 2007).

The end of the Cold War in 1989 marked a significant shift in the geopolitical landscape, leading to the dissolution of the Soviet Union and the emergence of a unipolar world order dominated by the United States. This transition influenced diplomatic strategies and alliances, fostering a new



era of international relations characterized by regional conflicts and efforts at global cooperation. (Gaddis, 1997).

Role of International Organizations:

United Nations (UN) and Its Functions:

The United Nations (UN) stands as the paramount international organization, embodying the collective will of the international community to promote peace, security, and cooperation among nations. (UN. Org, n.d). Established in 1945, the UN's functions encompass a wide array of activities aimed at addressing global challenges. The UN Charter outlines its key purposes, including the maintenance of international peace and security, the promotion of human rights, the fostering of social and economic development, and the provision of a forum for diplomatic negotiations and dispute resolution. (UN, 1945).

The Security Council, one of the main organs of the UN, plays a central role in maintaining international peace and security. Through resolutions and diplomatic initiatives, the Security Council addresses conflicts, imposes sanctions, and authorizes peacekeeping missions. (UNSC, N.d). Additionally, specialized agencies such as the UNICEF, UNESCO, and the World Health Organization (WHO) contribute to the organization's broader objectives by focusing on specific issues such as children's rights, education, and global health.

Other Global Organizations (e.g., NATO, WTO):

Beyond the UN, various global organizations play crucial roles in specific areas of international relations. The North Atlantic Treaty Organization (NATO), established in 1949, is a military alliance that promotes collective defense among its member states. (NATOA, n.d). NATO's role in ensuring the security of its members and its involvement in peacekeeping operations underscore its significance in the geopolitical landscape.

The World Trade Organization (WTO), founded in 1995, facilitates international trade by providing a platform for negotiations and dispute resolution among its member states. (WTO, n.d). Through diplomatic initiatives, the WTO seeks to reduce trade barriers and create a more open and predictable global trading system.

Diplomatic Initiatives for Global Peace and Security:

Diplomatic initiatives for global peace and security often involve collaborative efforts between international organizations, states, and non-state actors. One notable example is the Joint Comprehensive Plan of Action (JCPOA), commonly known as the Iran Nuclear Deal. Negotiated in 2015 between Iran and the P5+1 (the United States, United Kingdom, France, Germany, Russia, and China) with the European Union, the JCPOA aimed to curb Iran's nuclear program in exchange for the lifting of economic sanctions. (USDS, 2015).

Similarly, diplomatic efforts by the UN, the African Union, and other regional organizations have been instrumental in addressing conflicts in regions such as the Middle East, Africa, and the Balkans. These initiatives involve diplomatic negotiations, peacekeeping missions, and the promotion of dialogue to prevent and resolve conflicts. (AU, n.d).



Case Studies:

Successful Diplomatic Initiatives:

One exemplary case of successful diplomatic initiative is the Camp David Accords in 1978. Facilitated by then-U.S. President Jimmy Carter, Egyptian President Anwar Sadat, and Israeli Prime Minister Menachem Begin, this accord led to the first-ever peace treaty between Israel and an Arab state. The negotiations at Camp David addressed longstanding conflicts and resulted in the Egypt-Israel Peace Treaty, fundamentally altering the dynamics of the Middle East and setting a precedent for diplomatic solutions to seemingly intractable conflicts. (Carter, 1978).

Another notable success is the Dayton Agreement, signed in 1995, which brought an end to the Bosnian War. The agreement, brokered by the United States in collaboration with the European Union and Russia, established the framework for the establishment of the Bosnia and Herzegovina Federation and the Republika Srpska, providing a foundation for stability in the region. (Dayton Agreement, 1995).

Diplomatic failures and their Consequences:

The Munich Agreement of 1938 is a stark example of a diplomatic failure with severe consequences. In an attempt to appease Adolf Hitler and avoid conflict, British Prime Minister Neville Chamberlain and French Premier Édouard Daladier agreed to allow the Nazi annexation of the Sudetenland, a region of Czechoslovakia. This concession ultimately emboldened Hitler, leading to further aggression and contributing to the outbreak of World War II. (The Munich Agreement, 1938).

Similarly, the Rwandan Genocide in 1994 stands as a catastrophic diplomatic failure. The international community, including the United Nations, failed to intervene effectively, leading to the loss of hundreds of thousands of lives. The lack of timely and decisive diplomatic action underscored the devastating consequences of diplomatic inaction in the face of humanitarian crises. (UN.Org.).

Lessons Learned from Historical Examples:

From successful and failed diplomatic initiatives, crucial lessons emerge. The Camp David Accords highlight the importance of personal engagement and commitment to dialogue. The willingness of leaders to engage in direct negotiations and address core issues demonstrated that diplomatic breakthroughs require visionary leaders willing to take calculated risks. (Carter, 1978).

Conversely, the Munich Agreement underscores the dangers of appeasement and the importance of standing firm against aggression. The diplomatic lesson learned is that concessions made to tyrants may embolden them, leading to more significant threats and consequences.

The Rwandan Genocide serves as a tragic lesson in the need for swift and decisive international action to prevent mass atrocities. Diplomatic and humanitarian responses must be timely, coordinated, and committed to the protection of human lives, emphasizing the moral responsibility of the international community. (UN.Org.).

A New Age for Distance Learning



Future Trends in Diplomacy:

Technological Influences:

The future of diplomacy is intricately linked with technological advancements that reshape the global landscape. The rise of digital diplomacy, also known as e-diplomacy, leverages technologies such as social media, artificial intelligence, and big data analytics to enhance communication and information dissemination among nations. (Khan, 2019). Digital platforms provide diplomats with new channels for engaging with the public, fostering transparency, and shaping public opinion on international affairs.

Emerging technologies like blockchain are poised to revolutionize diplomatic processes by enhancing the security and transparency of transactions and agreements. (Narayanan & Schmatikov, 2016). Additionally, virtual reality (VR) and augmented reality (AR) may play a role in diplomatic training, simulation exercises, and remote collaboration, overcoming geographical barriers and facilitating more immersive diplomatic experiences. (Tu, 2018).

As technological innovations continue to unfold, diplomats must adapt to the evolving communication landscape and harness the potential of cutting-edge tools to advance diplomatic objectives.

Climate Change and Diplomatic Challenges:

Climate change represents a critical challenge that will significantly influence the diplomatic agenda in the future. The impacts of climate change, including rising sea levels, extreme weather events, and resource scarcity, necessitate international cooperation and diplomatic initiatives. The Paris Agreement, adopted in 2015, is a notable example of a diplomatic effort aimed at addressing climate change through a collective commitment to limit global warming. (UNFCC, 2015).

Diplomacy will play a pivotal role in negotiating and implementing measures to mitigate climate change, adapt to its effects, and promote sustainable development. Issues such as climate-induced migration, resource conflicts, and environmental diplomacy will demand diplomatic solutions and international cooperation on an unprecedented scale.

Emerging Issues in International Relations:

Several emerging issues in international relations will shape the diplomatic landscape in the future. Cybersecurity and the governance of the digital domain are increasingly significant concerns, requiring international agreements and norms to address challenges related to cyber threats, information warfare, and digital privacy. (Rid & Buchanan, 2015).

Health diplomacy is another emerging field gaining prominence, as demonstrated by the global response to the COVID-19 pandemic. The need for international collaboration in addressing health crises, ensuring equitable access to vaccines, and coordinating pandemic preparedness efforts underscores the importance of health considerations in diplomatic initiatives. Kickbusch & Reddy, 2015).

Moreover, geopolitical shifts and the rise of new global powers may reshape traditional alliances and power structures, demanding diplomatic agility to navigate evolving relationships and regional dynamics. (Bremmer, 2019).



As these emerging issues continue to evolve, diplomats will need to adapt their strategies and engage in proactive, cooperative efforts to address the complexities of an interconnected and rapidly changing world.

Conclusion

In conclusion, our exploration into the multifaceted world of diplomacy has provided a comprehensive understanding of its key concepts, illustrating its role as the linchpin in international relations.

We began by defining diplomacy as the art and science of conducting negotiations between nations, emphasizing its evolution from ancient practices to the complex landscape of contemporary international relations. The balance of power, soft and hard power dynamics, economic and military influences, and historical developments all contribute to the intricate tapestry of diplomatic engagements.

In our examination, the significance of diplomacy in our globalized world became evident. Diplomacy serves as the cornerstone for maintaining peace, fostering cooperation, and addressing challenges that transcend national borders. It is through diplomatic channels that nations navigate the complexities of interconnected economies, diverse cultures, and shared global challenges, emphasizing its pivotal role in shaping the international order.

As we peer into the future, it is clear that diplomacy will continue to play a critical role in shaping the world we inhabit. The advent of technological advancements, the challenges posed by climate change, and emerging issues in international relations underscore the necessity for adept and informed diplomats. Encouraging diplomatic literacy becomes imperative for fostering a harmonious future, where nations collaborate to address common concerns and mitigate potential conflicts.

In a world where interconnectedness is the norm, diplomatic literacy empowers individuals, policymakers, and nations to navigate the complexities of international relations with finesse. It is a call to cultivate the skills of negotiation, cultural competence, and an understanding of historical contexts, ensuring that future generations contribute to a world characterized by cooperation, mutual understanding, and shared responsibilities.

In essence, the insights gained into the dynamics of diplomacy emphasize its timeless relevance and enduring importance. As we strive for a future marked by global harmony, diplomatic literacy stands as a beacon, guiding us towards a world where dialogue triumphs over discord, collaboration over conflict, and diplomacy remains the instrument through which nations weave the fabric of international relations.



Bibliography

African Union. (n.d.). Conflict Resolution. Retrieved from https://au.int/en/areas-of-work/peace-and-security/conflict-resolution.

Berridge, G. R. (2015). Diplomacy: Theory and Practice. Palgrave Macmillan.

Bremmer, I. (2019). Us vs. Them: The Failure of Globalism. Penguin.

Carter, J., Begin, M., Sadat, A. (1978). Camp David Accords. Retrieved from https://avalon.law.yale.edu/20th_century/campdavid.asp.

Dayton Agreement. (1995). Retrieved from https://peacemaker.un.org/bosniaherzegovina-dayton95.

Fisher, R., Ury, W., & Patton, B. (2011). Getting to Yes: Negotiating Agreement Without Giving In. Penguin.

Fursenko, A., & Naftali, T. (2007). "One Hell of a Gamble": Khrushchev, Castro, and Kennedy, 1958-1964. W. W. Norton & Company.

Gaddis, J. L. (1997). We Now Know: Rethinking Cold War History. Oxford University Press.

Hall, E. T. (1976). Beyond Culture. Anchor Books.

Khan, R., & de Leon, M. (2019). Digital Diplomacy Revisited: A Review of Conceptual Approaches. Media International Australia, 171(1), 5-21.

Kickbusch, I., & Reddy, K. S. (2015). Global Health Diplomacy: The Need for New Perspectives, Strategic Approaches, and Skills in Global Health. Bulletin of the World Health Organization, 93(12), 873-874.

King, L. W. (1902). The Code of Hammurabi. The Avalon Project. https://avalon.law.yale.edu/ancient/hamframe.asp

Kissinger, H. (1994). Diplomacy. Simon & Schuster.

Mearsheimer, J. J. (2001). The Tragedy of Great Power Politics. W. W. Norton & Company.

Morgenthau, H. J. (1948). Politics Among Nations: The Struggle for Power and Peace. Knopf.

Murrow, E. R. (1961). Edward R. Murrow: Radio and Television Broadcasts. Library of America.

Narayanan, V. K., & Shmatikov, V. (2016). Bitcoin and Cryptographic Currencies Security. IEEE Security & Privacy, 14(4), 6-14.

Nicolson, H. (1963). Diplomacy. Oxford University Press.

North Atlantic Treaty Organization (NATO). (n.d.). NATO's Purpose and Security Roles. Retrieved from https://www.nato.int/nato-welcome/index.html.

Nye, J. S. (1990). Soft Power. Foreign Policy, 80, 153-171.

A New Age for Distance Learning



Nye, J. S. (2004). Soft Power: The Means to Success in World Politics. PublicAffairs.

Nye, J. S. (2011). The Future of Power. PublicAffairs.

Osiander, A. (2001). Sovereignty, International Relations, and the Westphalian Myth. International Organization, 55(2), 251-287.

Rid, T., & Buchanan, B. (2015). Attributing Cyber Attacks. Journal of Strategic Studies, 38(1-2), 4-37.

Schroeder, P. W. (1994). The Transformation of European Politics, 1763-1848. Oxford University Press.

The Munich Agreement. (1938). Retrieved from https://avalon.law.yale.edu/20th_century/munich.asp.

Tu, H. (2018). Virtual Reality Diplomacy: A New Frontier in International Relations. Asia Policy, 13(2), 79-88.

United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC). (2015). Paris Agreement. Retrieved from https://unfccc.int/sites/default/files/english_paris_agreement.pdf.

United Nations Security Council. (n.d.). Functions and Powers. Retrieved from https://www.un.org/securitycouncil/content/functions-and-powers.

United Nations. (1945). Charter of the United Nations. Retrieved from https://www.un.org/en/about-us/un-charter.

United Nations. (n.d.). Mediation, Conflict Prevention, and Peacemaking. Retrieved from https://www.un.org/peacemaker/content/mediation.

United Nations. (n.d.). Overview of the United Nations. Retrieved from https://www.un.org/en/sections/about-us/history/index.html.

United Nations. (n.d.). Rwanda: Background. Retrieved from https://www.un.org/en/genocideprevention/genocide.shtml.

United States Department of State. (2015). Joint Comprehensive Plan of Action. Retrieved from https://www.state.gov/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/03-13-15-agreement.pdf.

Vienna Convention on Diplomatic Relations. (1961). United Nations. https://legal.un.org/ilc/texts/instruments/english/conventions/9_1_1961.pdf

Waltz, K. (1979). Theory of International Politics. McGraw-Hill.

World Trade Organization (WTO). (n.d.). Understanding the WTO. Retrieved from https://www.wto.org/english/thewto_e/whatis_e/whatis_e.htm.